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LOS OSOS WASTEWATER PROJECT  

DESIGN-BUILD RFQ 1011 AND 1012 QUESTIONS 
 

Questions received through January 15, 2009 

1. Question: What is the deadline for questions and RFI’s? 

Answer: County requests that questions and RFI’s be received by January 
23, 2009 in order to allow for answers or addenda to be issued with adequate 
time before SOQ submittal deadline 

2. Question: Can a sub-contractor or sub-consultant member be listed for pre-
qualification with more than one D/B Entity? 

Answer: Yes, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.6.2 of the RFQ 
related to changes to the Respondent teams. 

3. Question: Can the D/B Entity list multiple options for a core member sub-
contractor or sub-consultant? 

Answer: Yes, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.6.2 of the RFQ 
related to changes to the Respondent teams. 

4. Question: To get credit for utilization of local sub-consultants as members of the 
D/B Entity, must they be listed as a core member? 

Answer: Yes, local sub-contractors and sub-consultants must be listed as a 
core member and meet the pre-qualification criteria to be considered in the 
“utilization of local contractors and consultants” evaluation criteria.  Core 
members are those disciplines required in Section 2.8 and other specialties 
identified by the D/B Entity.  
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5. Question: How will the “utilization of local contractors and consultants” evaluation 
criteria be applied if a local sub-contractor or sub-consultant is listed to be utilized 
for multiple core member roles.  

Answer: The D/B Entity will be eligible to receive credit for “utilization of local 
contractors and consultants” for each core member role in which a local firm 
is listed and pre-qualified.   

6. Question: What role will the County and their Project team and consultants take 
in public outreach?  

Answer: The County expects to coordinate its overall outreach with the D/B 
Entity’s outreach efforts related to construction schedule in order to provide a 
unified and consistent quality of public outreach.  

7. Question: How many Reference Projects are required to be listed under Section 
4.7 and Appendix A-3?  

Answer: Section 4.7 requests up to ten reference projects to be submitted 
which are relevant to this Project. Additionally, Appendix A-3 requests the six 
most recent public works projects and the three largest projects within the last 
five years.  Since the criteria for reference projects may overlap, the exact 
number of projects listed will depend on the specific experience of each D/B 
Entity. 

8. Question: What license numbers should be listed in Section A-1, question 1 of 
the Pre-Qualification Questionnaire? 

Answer: The contractor’s license number of the General Contractor and each 
core sub-contractor member should be given.  If applicable, the professional 
license number of the individual with responsible charge for the Engineer of 
Record and each sub-consultant member should be given in Section A-1.  
Additional information and license numbers are requested in Section A-2. 

9. Question: In the case where the General Contractor is the D/B Entity to which all 
other members of the team (including the Engineer of Record) are 
subcontracted, would a standard performance bond and a payment bond with 
General Contractor as Principal, issued by a qualified surety be sufficiently 
responsive to the Project Guarantor requirement? 

Answer: No, in addition to evidence of the ability to obtain the standard 
performance and payment bonds, the Project Guarantor must provide the 
other financial information requested in the RFQ, including the financial 
qualifications requested in Section 4.8. 
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10. Question: What is the definition of the Equipment Supply Manager and 
Compliance Manager? 

Answer: These terms were included in the November 4, 2008 draft version of 
the RFQ, but have been removed from the final RFQ, dated December 17, 
2008, and are not required to be identified as key staff members. 

11. Question: Will D/B Entities have access to the flow models and design 
calculations used to develop the 2004 Collection System plans and specifications 
for the Los Osos Community Services District? 

Answer: The final construction drawings (CADD files) are expected to be 
included with the RFP.  Whether other information, such as flow models and 
design calculations used to develop the 2004 Collection System design, is 
included in the RFP depends on the ability of the County to obtain such 
information from the Los Osos CSD or their design engineer.  

12. Question: Will survey data and a site map of the treatment facility site be 
included with the RFP or will it be part of the scope of work for the D/B Entity? 

Answer: A survey and site map of the treatment facility site is currently being 
developed and will be included with the RFP. 
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Questions received through January 23, 2009. 

13. Question: Please provide further clarification to Question 7 (see above) which 
was distributed at the January 16, 2009 pre-submittal meeting.  How many 
reference projects are required to be listed per Section 4.7 and Appendix A-3, 
and for which member of the D/B Entity?  

Answer: In the SOQ, per Section 4.7, provide a maximum of ten projects that 
any members of the D/B Entity have been involved in over the last ten years 
which provide evidence of qualifications relevant to this Project.  Complete a 
“Reference Project” form in Section A-3 for each project discussed in the 
SOQ.   

In addition, as part of the Pre-Qualification Questionnaire, complete Section 
A-3 by listing the six most recent public works projects for each member of 
the D/B Entity and the General Contractors three largest design-build projects 
completed in the last five years.   

14. Question: The RFQ states that D/B Entities may provide comments or 
information on alternative approaches to the County’s project approach, including 
design-build-operate, private financing, or a single contract for the collection 
system and treatment facility.  How will the evaluation and ranking of the D/B 
Entities consider this information? 

Answer: Per Section 4.10, this information will not be evaluated and ranked.  
The evaluation and ranking will be based on the project approach and 
evaluation criteria provided in the RFQ. 

15. Question: What is the defined meaning of the “Project Guarantor.” 
 
Answer: There is not a specific definition of the Project Guarantor in the RFQ, 
but the term is described in Section 4.8.1.  As described in Section 4.8.1, the 
Project Guarantor is the Respondent, its parent D/B Entity, or a substantially 
capitalized affiliate of the Respondent or its parent D/B Entity that has the 
financial capability to provide the project guarantees that are expected to be 
required in the contract documents.  This term will be further defined, if used 
in the RFP or contract documents.  

16. Question: Please provide further clarification to Question 9 (see above) which 
was distributed at the January 16, 2009 pre-submittal meeting.  If the General 
Contractor member is identified as the Project Guarantor and provides evidence 
of bonding ability and other required financial information, is separate financial 
information or evidence of separate bonding ability required to be submitted by 
the other members of the D/B Entity? 

Answer: Only the organization identified as the Project Guarantor is required 
to submit the financial information requested of the Project Guarantor in the 
RFQ.  If the Respondent contracting party and the Project Guarantor are 



Page 5 of 6 

different entities, the financial information described under Section 4.8.2, must 
be provided for both entities, but only the Respondent contracting party need 
provide evidence of the ability to provide bonding and insurance required 
under Section 4.8.3.  However, Section 2.3 does request sub-contractors to 
provide some information regarding bonding history. 

17. Question: Is each member of the D/B Entity required to complete the Certification 
form in Section A-4? 

Answer: Yes, each member of the D/B Entity must complete the Certification 
form in Section A-4. 

18. Question: Is it acceptable to use 10-point font for tables, figures and graphic 
within the SOQ? 

Answer: Yes, font sizes smaller than 12-point may be used in tables, charts, 
figures, and graphics that are included in the SOQ.  The text of the SOQ 
document should be a minimum of 12-point font. 

19. Question: For the core members of Structural Engineer, Mechanical Engineer, 
and Electrical Engineering required in Section 2.8, is a registered engineer 
required for each of these disciplines?  

Answer: Yes, discipline specific engineers, licensed in California, are required 
for each of the core sub-consultant members. 

20. Question: What mapping information will be furnished by the County? 

Answer: Topographic surveys with one-foot contours will be provided with the 
RFP for all project construction sites. 

21. Question: Who is responsible for obtaining right-of-way and construction 
easements?  

Answer: The County is responsible for obtaining all real property, right-of-way, 
and easements.  

22. Question: What is the future role of the Technical Advisory Committee? 

Answer: The Technical Advisory Committee was dissolved in December, 
2008.   At this time, no future role of the Technical Advisory Committee is 
anticipated. 

23. Question: What is the status the waste discharge permit and expected discharge 
requirements from the Regional Water Board? 

Answer: The County has not yet formally applied for a permit from the 
Regional Water Board.  However, throughout the Project planning, the County 
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has been holding preliminary meetings with the staff of all the regulatory 
permitting agencies, including the Regional Water Board.  Some of the 
expected effluent discharge limits that are anticipated to be included in the 
Waste Discharge Requirements are provided in Section 3.9.2 of the 
Treatment Facility RFQ (#1012). 

24. Question: Is it essential that the Mechanical Subcontractor and Electrical 
Subcontractor be listed as members of the D/B Entity in the SOQ? 

Answer: Yes, these subcontracting trades are required as core members of 
the D/B Entity.  Additionally, Public Contract Code Section 20133(d)(3)(i) 
specifically requires that the mechanical subcontractor member be listed in 
the pre-qualification questionnaire if the DB Entity is a partnership, limited 
partnership, or other association. 

25. Question: The information on the Cover Page and in Section 2.2 is conflicting.  
What is the address where the Pre-Qualification Documents are to be submitted?   

Answer: The Pre-Qualification Documents are to be submitted by 3:00 p.m. 
on February 10, 2009 to: 
  County of San Luis Obispo  
  Debbie Belt, GSA – Purchasing 
  1087 Santa Rosa Street 
  San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 

An addendum will be issued to correct Section 2.2 of the RFQ.  


